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Powell River School District 
Strategic Plan 2019‐2023 

Introduction 

We recognize the Tla’amin people on whose traditional territory we work and reside. The Board 
of Education for School District #47 (Powell River) has been and continues to be committed to 
both long and short‐term School and District planning. The Board supports collaborative 
planning processes as the means to improvement in instruction and effective fiscal planning 
and decision‐making. We believe that the development of a coherent District Strategic Plan 
begins with the formulation of school‐based improvement plans. This process allows each 
school to recognize its own unique learning situation such that, with support and provision of 
appropriate resources from the District, all Powell River students have equitable educational 
opportunity regardless of their geographic location. 

In 2019, our Board created a District Strategic Plan to set the strategic direction for the District 
during the Board’s four year term.  The plan was developed by completing an Environmental 
Scan and SWOT analysis, extensive discussion with Trustees and Senior Staff, and a full day 
strategic planning workshop involving the Board of Education and Senior District Leadership. 
The Board then hosted a facilitated forum involving community stakeholders and used the 
feedback from that event to inform the balance of its planning.  

The Strategic Plan will assist schools in establishing strategies and action items that align to the 
District’s overall direction while still meeting their own, unique circumstances.  These school‐
specific action items will be periodically reported out to the Board of Education and shared with 
the public to demonstrate progress against the goals and objectives that are outlined in our 
plan.  

The District’s Strategic Plan aligns with the Ministry of Education’s most recent 2019 Service 
Plan and its key goals to: Improve Student Achievement and Success, Improve Outcomes for 
Indigenous Students and Improve the K‐12 system.   



District Profile  

Powell River is a beautiful coastal community situated on the Upper Sunshine Coast. Located on 
British Columbia’s Sunshine Coast, Powell River offers an amazing mixture of nature, culture 
and industry. Neatly tucked into BC’s coastline, 5 hours from Vancouver by car or 30 minutes by 
plane. Just over 130 km from Vancouver, BC, Powell River is surrounded by forest, mountains, 
and many freshwater bodies of water and is part of the coastal mountain range. With the 
Pacific Ocean to its west, the region enjoys a temperate climate. In 2016, the City of Powell 
River and surrounding region has a population of approximately 20,000 people.  

Named a Cultural Capital of Canada in 2004, Powell River offers a wide and varied range of 
activities for arts and culture enthusiasts. The City boasts the nation’s oldest continuously 
operating movie house, the Patricia Theatre. The community is home to International Choral 
Kathaumixw, which is a choral festival held every second year, featuring more than 2,500 
performers from five continents. The community is also home to the Pacific Region 
International Summer Music Academy, featuring some of the world’s finest symphonic 
musicians as faculty, and attracting top students from around the world to form an annual 
symphonic orchestra, featuring a number of performances open to the public. 

The Powell River region is home to the Sunshine Coast Trail, which is 180 kilometres in length, 
offering the longest hut‐to‐hut hiking experience in Canada. The trail can be explored in smaller 
sections for day hikes, or via one extraordinary, multi‐day hiking vacation. There is also the 
Powell River Forest Canoe Route, which is a 57‐kilometre, eight lake, five portage journey that 
takes roughly five days.  

The Powell River School District serves approximately 2,500 students in four regular elementary 
schools, one dual track elementary school, one remote island elementary school, two 
distributed learning centres, two alternate schools and one secondary school.  

The School District provides a number of additional programs, including:  

 Four Strong Start Programs

 Pre‐Kindergarten Screening

 K‐3 Early Intervention

 Duel Credit Trades

 Digital IM Program

 International Student Program

 After School Program

 Summer Reading and Recreational Program

 Powell Lake Ecological and Outdoor Learning Centre

 Eco‐Immersion and Leadership Programming

 Provincial Auditory Outreach Program



The School District’s student population, until recently, had been decreasing in recent years but 
is projecting a 376‐student increase over the next 10 years from its current student population. 
There are currently 334 Indigenous students in the District (6.9% of overall student population) 
and 391 Students with Special Needs (about 5.9% of overall student population).  

Statement of Belief 

We believe that the public‐school system is an inclusive system and that students come 
to school with diverse needs and abilities. 

We also believe that all students have a right to an education and a responsibility to 
become active learners. 

We also believe positive relationships between students and teachers are central to 
effective teaching and learning, and that success is measured in the process itself as well 
as in the outcomes. 

We believe that together with School District employees and groups, we can enable our 
students to realize their full potential.  

We believe that students have the following rights:  

 to learn in safe and caring environments
 to have their social, emotional, physical and intellectual needs met
 to have an education that prepares them for the world of the future
 to have experiences that provide multiple pathways to success

We believe that students have the following responsibilities: 

 to respect each other and all members of their school community

 to contribute to the learning opportunities offered to them



Mission, Vision, and Values  

Mission ‐ To prepare students, within a safe, inclusive, and dynamic environment to face a 
changing world as lifelong learners and informed, responsible citizens.  

Vision To enable all learners to develop their individual potential and to acquire the knowledge, 
skills and attitudes needed to contribute to a healthy, democratic and pluralistic society.  

Values  

Values 

Respect  Social 
Responsibility 

Inclusion  Relationships 

Collaboration  Engagement  Empathy  Integrity   

Teamwork   Accountability  Innovation  Openness and 
Transparency 

Dignity   Equity  Responsiveness  Diversity 



Themes, Goals, and Objectives 

Themes 

The District has chosen three key themes that will be given special focus over the next four 
years:  

1. Learner Success

The District’s top priority is learner success. This plan is designed towards addressing
each learner’s unique needs and to create a physical and emotional environment that
supports our learners and our staff.  We recognize the need to pay particular attention
to our most vulnerable learners and to address emerging issues with respect to the
mental health and well‐being of our students and staff.

Improving outcomes for Indigenous learners is a key priority for the school district.
Honouring the treaty of the Tla’amin Nation the district reports achievement and
improvement data for nation students directly to the Nation. The Nation will decide how
to use the data provide direction to the district and determine what data will be made
publically available.

2. Engagement and Connections

The District has strong relationships with many partners including the Tla’amin Nation,
the qathet Regional District, the City of Powell River and other internal and external
communities, including students, families, and staff. We can only be successful if we
broaden and strengthen our relationships and look to areas of shared interest and
collaboration with all of our partners moving forward. This theme is meant to recognize
the importance of clear communication and the engagement of all stakeholders.

3. Organizational Sustainability

This theme recognizes the critical role that internal organization has on achieving our
mission and vision. The District will continue to look for opportunities to increase self‐
generated revenue; remain vigilant in reviewing existing business processes to ensure
that the District continues to operate efficiently; keep an eye on continuous
improvement and measurement of progress; and ensure that the District is recognized
within the community to be a leader in the promotion of environmental priorities and
mindful of facilitating sustainable practices within the organization.



Goals and Objectives:  

Theme: Learner Success 

Goal 1:  Improve achievement results for ALL students 

 Objective: Increase the readiness of students entering kindergarten

 Objective: Increase student literacy

 Objective: Increase student numeracy

 Objective: Increase secondary graduation and transition rates

 Objective: Improve the readiness of students for life after high school

Goal   2: Support mental health needs and well‐being of students and employees 

 Objective: Increase mental health literacy for students, parents and staff

 Objective: Improve our culture of acceptance, tolerance, mindfulness and respect

 Objective: Promote student engagement in their learning and their community

 Objective: Promote the appropriate and ethical use of social media

Theme: Engagement and Connections 

Goal 1:  Improve communication and engagement strategies to adapt to the varying needs of 
our community 

 Objective: Board will implement strategies that meet the preferred communication and
engagement needs of our students and stakeholders

 Objective: Promote employee engagement in their school and organizational culture

 Objective: Increase collaboration with the Tla’amin Nation, the qathet Regional District
and the City of Powell River

Theme: Organizational Sustainability 

Goal 1: Improve Organizational Effectiveness 

 Objective: Establish a framework for strategic planning and continuous reporting

 Objective: Increase school district generated revenue

 Objective: Streamline business functions

Goal 2: Promote and facilitate sustainable practices within the organization 

 Objective: Create and implement a district wide energy management plan

 Objective: Create and implement a district wide environmental sustainability plan



Operational Plan:  

Theme: Learner Success 

Goal 1: Improve achievement results for ALL students 

Objective  Action/Initiative  Measure  Responsibility  Timeline  Resources 
Required 

Increase the readiness of 
students entering kindergarten 

 Strong Start /Orca Bus

 Spring Enhanced
Kindergarten
Orientation Program

 Continue to hold pre K
transition meetings for
vulnerable students
with community
partners

 Changing Results for
Young Learners Project

Pre and Post K 
Screening 

Pre and Post K 
Screening; CHEQ 
Survey 

Specialized Services 
referrals; 
designation criteria 

Teacher 
observations 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; Rita 
John; Brittany 
Letham 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; Rita 
John 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; Rita 
John; 
Kindergarten 
teachers; Strong 
Start facilitators; 
community pre‐
school/daycare 
workers 

June 30, 2023 
(yearly review) 

April/May (yearly) 

January‐May 
(yearly) 

October‐June (six 
sessions) 

Staff time (.3 FTE 
Ladybugs, etc.) 

Staff time 

Staff time 

Release time and 
travel for participants 



Increase student literacy   Identify all students in K
who are not meeting or
exceeding literacy
expectations

 Provide literacy
intervention support
for identified K
students (Ladybugs)

 Identify all students in
1‐7 who are not
meeting or exceeding
literacy expectations
for each grade level

 Provide literacy
intervention support
for identified 1‐7
students (interventions,
Reading Eggs, etc)

Pre K assessment 

Pre K assessment; 
Firm Foundations 

PM Benchmark data 
(1‐3); GMRT data (4‐
7); single year and 
trend data (literacy 
expectations) for the 
number of students 
in grade 4, 7 
(provincial 
assessments); 
Grades 1‐7 writing 
performance 
standards; report 
card data; School 
Based Team data 

PM Benchmark data 
(1‐3); GMRT data (4‐
7); Firm 
Foundations; Grades 
1‐7 writing 
performance 
standards 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
School 
principals; 
classroom 
teachers; 
Intervention 
teachers 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 

Spring (yearly) 

Spring (yearly) 

September 
(yearly) 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

Staff time 

.3 teacher in addition 
to EA support  

Staff time 

Staff time and 
resources 



 Identify and provide
literacy intervention
support for identified 8‐
12 students
(interventions, KOR etc)

 Create structures to
facilitate regular
monitoring and refining
of improvement
processes (for example
district assessment
review committee)

 Integrating Indigenous
world views and
perspectives into
learning environments

 Provide professional
learning opportunities
connected to literacy
improvement efforts

Single year and trend 
data (literacy 
expectations) for the 
number of students 
in grade 4, 7 
(provincial 
assessments); 
Grades 1‐7 writing 
performance 
standards; report 
card data; School 
Based Team data 

Increased 
collaboration and 
clarity 

Participation in pro d 
activities; Student 
Learning Survey; 
How are We Doing 
Report 

Participation in pro d 
activities; survey 
participants; 
improved 
achievement in 
targeted areas 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
School 
principals; 
classroom 
teachers; 
Intervention 
teachers 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
school 
principals; 
intervention 
teachers; 
classroom 
teachers 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; Pro 
D coordinator; 
Aboriginal 
Contacts; 
classroom 
teachers 

Allison Burt; 
Kristen Brach; 
School Principals 

3 times per year  

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

Staff time and 
resources 

$2,000 for in service 
and release time 

$15,000 



Increase student numeracy   Identify all students
who are not meeting or
exceeding numeracy
expectations for each
grade level

 Provide numeracy
intervention support
for targeted
populations

 Integrating Indigenous
world views and
perspectives into
learning environments

Single year and trend 
data (numeracy 
expectations) for the 
number of students 
in grade 4, 7, and 10 
(provincial 
assessments); School 
Based Teams; Report 
Card; District Math 
Assessment (grades 
2‐7) 

Single year and trend 
data (numeracy 
expectations) for the 
number of students 
in grade 4, 7, and 10 
(provincial 
assessments); grade 
to grade transitions; 
School Based Teams; 
Report Card; District 
Math Assessment 
(grades 2‐7) 

Participation in pro d 
activities; Student 
Learning Survey; 
How are We Doing 
Report 

School 
principals; 
Intervention 
teachers; Kristen 
Brach; Allison 
Burt 

School 
principals; 
intervention 
teachers; Kristen 
Brach; Allison 
Burt 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; Pro 
D coordinator; 
Aboriginal 
Contacts; 
classroom 
teachers 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

Staff time 

Staff time 

Staff time 



 Continuously monitor
progress of
interventions to inform
instruction and
determine next steps

 Create structures to
facilitate regular
monitoring and refining
of improvement
processes (for example
district assessment
review committee)

Increased 
collaboration and 
clarity 

Increased 
collaboration and 
clarity 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
school 
principals; 
intervention 
teachers; 
classroom 
teachers 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
school 
principals; 
intervention 
teachers; 
classroom 
teachers 

June 2020 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

Staff time 

Staff time 

Increase secondary graduation 
and transition rates 

 Identify all students
who are not on track
for course completion,
grade transition and
graduation

 Provide tiered support
to students identified

Grade to grade 
transitions; 6 year 
completion rate 
(Dogwood Diploma 
or Adult Dogwood 
Diploma); course 
completion rates 
(grades 8‐12) 

Grade to grade 
transitions; 6 year 
completion rate 
(Dogwood Diploma 
or Adult Dogwood 
Diploma); course 
completion rates 
(grades 8‐12) 

School 
principals; 
Support 
teachers; School 
Counsellors; 
Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

School 
principals; 
Support 
teachers; School 
Counsellors; 
Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

Staff time 

Staff time 



 Continuously monitor
progress of
interventions to inform
instruction and
determine next steps

Increased 
collaboration and 
clarity 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
school 
principals; 
intervention 
teachers; 
classroom 
teachers 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

Staff time 

Improve the readiness of 
students for life after high school 

 Provide appropriate
career curriculum and
opportunities (for
example Dual Credit,
CLC, etc.) for k‐12
students

Student Learning 
Survey; Number and 
percentage of 
students in grade 10 
and 12 who feel 
satisfied that school 
is preparing them for 
post‐secondary 
education or a job in 
the future; Number 
and percentage of 
students 
transitioning 
Canadian to post‐
secondary 
institutions within 1 
and 3 years; Number 
and percentage of 
students who 
participate in 
apprenticeship, 
advanced 
placement, and work 
preparation 
programs; Number 
and percentage of 
students who are 
employed within 5 
years after 
graduating 

Allison Burt; 
Kristen Brach  

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

Staff time 



 Provide professional
learning opportunities
connected to career
education

Participation in pro d 
activities; survey 
participants; 
improved 
achievement in 
targeted areas 

Allison Burt; 
Kristen Brach; 
School Principals 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

Staff time 

Goal 2: Support mental health needs and well‐being of students and employees  

Objective  Action/Initiative  Measure  Responsibility  Timeline  Resources 
Required 

Increase mental health literacy 
for students, parents and staff 

 Family Support Liaison
Worker hired

 Improve EFAP Program
by initiating a new
service provider

 Create a district
Professional Learning
Group; Wellness 47s

 Rebrand the JMC/PD
Advisory Committee to
include wellness
initiatives

Improved retention 
rate (secondary 
school); improved 
individual 
attendance for at‐
risk youth  

Individuals accessing 
professional 
services; increase in 
referrals  

Employee 
participation; focus 
group feedback 

Teacher surveys; 
increased 
attendance at 
wellness initiatives 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; 
Lindsay Carlos 

Jay Yule 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

Jay Yule; Allison 
Burt; Aaron 
Reid; Shannon 
Behan; PRDTA 
representatives 

June 2020 

June 2020 

June 2020 

June 2020 

add FTE here, for 
example 



 EASE – Everyday
Anxiety Strategies for
Educators

Reduction in office 
referrals for bullying 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

June 2020 

Improve our culture of 
acceptance, tolerance, 
mindfulness and respect 

 Roots of Empathy (two
schools)

 Mind Up/Zones of
Regulation, etc.

 SOGI

 Enhanced Kindergarten
Orientation

 Changing Results for
Young Children

 ERASE strategy

EDI data 

EDI data;  reduced 
office referrals 

Student Learning 
Survey; MDI; 
McCreary Study 

Pre/Post assessment 

Participant 
observations 

Reduced district and 
office referrals; 
reduced quantity of 
student reports 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; 
school 
principals; 
school 
counsellors; 
classroom 
teachers 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; 
Allison Burt 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; Rita 
John 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; Rita 
John; 
participants 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; 
school principals 

June 2020 

June 2020 

June 2020 

June 2020 

June 2020 

June 2020 



Promote student engagement in 
their learning and their 
community 

 Provide professional
learning opportunities
connected to giving
student voice and
choice in their learning
and assessment
methods

 Provide professional
learning opportunities
connected to
differentiated learning
environments and
instruction

 Student committees

Student Learning 
Survey; MDI; teacher 
survey 

Ministry of 
Education Staff 
Survey; Student 
Learning Survey; 
district survey; 

Increased student 
participation in 
district initiatives; 
student learning 
survey 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau; 
Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

Kristen Brach; 
Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

Yearly 

Yearly 

June 2020 

Ministry data 

Promote the appropriate and 
ethical use of social media 

 Provide professional
learning opportunities
connected to social
media inside and
outside of the
classroom

 SD47 Social Media
Policy

 Provide appropriate
curriculum (K‐12

Participation and 
attendance in 
activities 

Completion and 
communication to all 
staff 

Teacher assessments 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
Matthew Hull 

Matthew Hull; 
Allison Burt 

Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
Mathew Hull 

June 2023 (review 
yearly) 

June 2020 

June 2020 

Staff time 

Staff time 

Staff time 



Theme: Engagement and Connections  

Goal 1: Improve communication and engagement strategies to adapt to the varying needs of our community 

Objective  Action/Initiative  Measure  Responsibility  Timeline  Resources 
Required 

Board will implement strategies 
that meet the preferred 
communication and engagement 
needs of our students and 
stakeholders 

 Increased web
presence

Increased traffic  Matthew Hull; 
Kristen Brach; 
Allison Burt; 
Tawnie 
Gaudreau; 
school principals 

June 2020 

Promote employee engagement 
in their school and 
organizational culture 

 Professional Book Club

 Wellness 47 Project

Participation; 
satisfaction survey 
Participation;  

satisfaction survey 

Allison Burt;  
Kristen Brach 

Tawnie 
Gaudreau 

June 2020 

June 2020 

$2,000 

$20 000 

Increase collaboration with the 
Tla’amin Nation, the qathet 
Regional District and the City of 
Powell River 

 Annual Board to Board
meetings

 Invite our partners to
join our social media
feeds and provide
them with all official
correspondence

 Provide incentives and
professional
development regarding
volunteerism

Participation; joint 
activities 

Increased public 
awareness of school 
district activities 

Increased volunteers 

Aaron Reid 

Matthew Hull 

Jay Yule 

June 2020 

June 2020 



Theme: Organizational Sustainability 

Goal 1: Improve Organizational Effectiveness 

Objective  Action/Initiative  Measure  Responsibility  Timeline  Resources 
Required 

Establish a framework for 
strategic planning and 
continuous reporting 

 Continue to build on the
work done to date with
a focus on annual
reporting

Completion of a 
framework that meets 
the needs of relevant 
stakeholders 

Superintendent, 
Secretary‐
Treasurer 

June 30, 2020  Staff time and 
resources for 
professional design 

Increase school district 
generated revenue 

 Continue to promote
the School District as a
destination for
International Students

 Continue to promote
the use of the Outdoor
Learning Centre (OLC) to
fee paying groups

 Rent or lease space
surplus to the
operational needs of the
district

Year over year 
increase in number of 
full time students 
(capacity dependent) 

Increased visits of fee 
paying groups 
(subject to surplus 
capacity)  

Increase in rental 
income 

International 
Department, 
Superintendent 

OLC Leadership, 
Superintendent, 
Secretary‐
Treasurer 

Secretary‐
Treasurer 

June 30, 2023 

June 30, 2023 

As opportunities 
arise 

Marketing Dollars 

Staff time and 
Marketing Dollars and 
continued investment 
in the centre 

Not material 

Streamline business functions   Extend implementation
of electronic leave
system to teaching and
support staff

 Replace support staff
timesheets with
electronic version

Continued increase in 
number of employees 
converted to new 
platform 

Continued increase in 
number of employees 
converted to new 
platform 

Human 
Resources, 
Secretary 
Treasurer & 
Payroll Staff 

Human 
Resources, 
Secretary 
Treasurer & 
Payroll Staff 

June 30, 2020 

June 30, 2021 

Staff Time 

Staff Time 



 Implement use of eDocs;
Electronic HR document
management solution

 Replace current
employee mileage and
reimbursement forms
with electronic platform

 Continue to explore
other opportunities to
improve efficiency as
they arise

Successful conversion 
of files by employee 
group 

Increase number of 
reimbursements by 
employee group 

Increase in the 
number of additional 
modules 
implemented over 
time  

Human 
Resources, 
Secretary 
Treasurer  

Secretary 
Treasurer & 
Finance  Staff 

Secretary‐
Treasurer 

June 30, 2021 

June 30, 2021 

June 30, 2023 

Staff Time 

Staff Time and 
Implementation 
dollars for module 
setup 

Implementation 
Dollars Staff Time and 
Implementation 
dollars for module 
setup 



Goal 2: Promote and facilitate sustainable practices within the organization 

Objective  Action/Initiative  Measure  Responsibility  Timeline  Resources 
Required 

Develop and implement a 
district wide energy 
management plan 

 Review what others in
the sector and other
levels of government
are doing with respect
to energy management

 Capitalize on
opportunities to reduce
energy consumption as
they arise

 Develop an energy
management plan

Adoption of a plan 

Operations 
Manager, 
Secretary‐
Treasurer 

Operations 
Manager, 
Secretary‐
Treasurer 

Operations 
Manager, 
Secretary‐
Treasurer 

June 30, 2020 

Ongoing 

June 30, 2021 

Staff Time 

Financial resources as 
required 

Financial resources 

Develop and implement a 
district wide environmental 
sustainability plan     

 Review what others in
the sector and other
levels of government
are doing with respect
to environmental
sustainability

 Identify and capitalize
on opportunities to
reduce waste

 Develop an
environmental
sustainability plan

Adoption of a plan 

Operations 
Manager, 
Secretary‐
Treasurer 

Operations 
Manager, 
Secretary‐
Treasurer 

Operations 
Manager, 
Secretary‐
Treasurer 

June 30, 202 

Ongoing 

June 30, 2021 

Staff Time 

Financial resources as 
required 

Financial resources 



Appendix 1: SWOT Analysis  

Support 
The district in achieving its objectives 

Hinder 
The district in achieving its objectives 

In
te
rn
al
 a
tt
ri
b
u
te
s 
o
f 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

Strengths 

• Diversity of opportunities and
programs the school district ,
including eco‐immersion, outdoor
education

• Relationship with Tla’amin
• Strong fiscal management
• Relationships with the community

due to rural advantages
• Duel Credit program
• Relationship with VIU
• Professional opportunities for

teachers
• Existing partnerships with the City,

non profits and VIU.

Weaknesses (Opportunities for improvement) 

• Lack of economies of scale makes it
challenging to meet certain needs  

• Lack of opportunity for teachers
• Public perception does not always align

to realities facing students  
• Educational outcomes

Ex
te
rn
al
 a
tt
ri
b
u
te
s 
o
f 
th
e
 e
n
vi
ro
n
m
e
n
t 

Opportunities 

• Communicating with the public in
ways they wish to receive it

• Consider expansion of Duel Credit
program

• Expansion of International
Education Program

• Partnerships with City and VIU
• Distinct advantages of the City,

including environment, recreation,
livability.

• Engagement with Tla’Amin
• New Curriculum aligns with the

School District's learning
objectives.

Threats (challenges) 

• Changing demographics
• Poverty and EDI
• Technology and social media

influencing students and perceptions of 
public education  

• Adapting to the new curriculum
• Government policies



Appendix 2: Community Forum  



p 



Respect 43.5 

Social Responsibility 31 

Inclusion 29 

Relationships 26.5 

Collaboration 26 

Engagement 25 

Empathy 19 

Integrity 18 

Teamwork 18 

Accountability 16 
Innovation 12 

Openness and Transparency 11 

Dignity 10 

Equity 5 

Responsiveness 5 

Diversity 5 



START 

Better definition of ‘student achievement’ 

Growth mindset vs reaching the goalposts 

What is the end goal – varies at different grades and for different kids (grad vs lifeskills) 

Not focused on one piece of data – more holistic of ‘achievement’ 

Tie in values/social development – not just academic 

Better communication of ability, more concrete when reporting on achievement, narrow in on where a 
child is. 

New curriculum not concrete enough, need to establish scope/sequence/expectations *gifted program 
separate – balance. 

What is student achievement? 

Introduction of AP Courses 

Increase academic rigor of program 

Measure student ‘happiness’ – enjoying what they do – multiple snapshots in the year – track students 
specifically – correlation between achievement and happiness 

Longitudinal measurements (K-12) 

Increase access to Fine Arts 

Prepare for University 

Life Skills 101 – Taxes, Student Loans, Over Arching, Financial Planning, Resume, Dress for Success (x3) 

More Counsellor options 

Advanced Placement 

Equitable distribution of funds for all 

Achievement of all students equally valuable 

Introducing scholarship information prior to grade 12 (Grade 10-11) during course selection 

Counsellors introduce more about University – academic opportunity 

Beyond Brooks – Bring it Back – Bring the Community in. 

Intervention/Supports for the mainstream at Brooks 

Learning support, not just behaviour support 

More advance classes at elementary (gifted program) 

Give multiple options on assignments – reaches all learners – al ages 

Feedback/rubric/criteria on all assignments 

Inconsistent planning courses – too confusing – can’t take hold 

Planning 10 teacher seems ‘designated’ (filler) 

Some counsellors not fully informed on academic planning 

Isolating kids to work in the hall, not monitored so more distracting 

Updating courses with more current content – Indigenous lens – new books 

Individualized pathway for student – explicit – K-12 

More accountability (on their education path) 

Design thinking 

Streaming – personalized 

Career Day/Fair 



STOP 

Current use of e-portfolio not communicating enough to parents/students 

Trying to do it all.  Need to pick and choose what is important to class and teacher 

Too much pressure on students for FSA – too much time 

Removing Education Support tool from students during exams 

CLE is terrible – poorly done.  Already done – not moving forward 

Large classes (Primary grades) 

Focus on written output – so many ways to show what you know (creative) 

Assessment time 

Keeping kids sitting inside to learn all day (need movement, interactions, outdoor on site) 

Education needs to address all aspects of life – success, spirit, physical, mental, emotional 

Planning courses keep changing – no continuity 

Changing Curriculum 

CONTINUE 

Expand our specialists to address various needs of kids – from gifted to intervention 

Preparing kids for post high school 

Moving away from standardized assessment 

Trades sampling 

Personalized learning 

Non-traditional approaches 

Early Intervention-Joyful Literacy 

Learning and success look different for early learning 



START 

School District supported Quality School Breakfast and Lunch program in all schools – not dependent on PAC 

More school based Counsellors (x4) 

Have counsellor who focuses just on mental health problems etc. 

Baseline of counselling depending on needs at school of special needs students 

Reducing stigma for students to go to counsellor – classroom visits by counsellors 

Improved privacy for students at Brooks visiting Counsellor – open windows – no privacy (curtains) 

Teaching teachers more about mental health and how to support (x2) 

Mental health first aider in each school (it is a course like medical first aid) 

Increase awareness of where to go for support/and what you can go get support for – steps 

Making relationships more important 

Youth Care Workers again (x2) 

Private areas for students to phone home 

Mindfulness training and use in elementary schools 

Regular daily check in with every child (x2) 

Adult daily buddy check in for students 

Buddy Program multi level 

Grade to Grade transition programs (x2) 

Spreading out requirements for students so the pressure doesn’t come all at once – ie:  scholarship binder in 
grade 11 – especially difficult in grade 12 

Spreading out projects for elementary students – reduce stress 

Relationships between staff and students so important 

Make facility changes to support mental health – sensory – reduce anxiety 

Increased support/services for at risk students at a young age – preventative rather than reactive 

Designated Safe Space – physical – nook spaces/pods 

Class on everyday learning/self care/mental health/learning how to interact with peers who may have 
struggles (x3) 

More multi purpose rooms 

More unused/unoccupied space in school to use for small groups, quiet room etc. 

Drug and Alcohol awareness/vaping sooner 

More support/rehabilitation for kids who get suspended for drugs 

Volunteering 

Trauma awareness/support for students/staff/parents (x2) 

Incorporate Mental Health sick days 

Have no technology days 

Homestay liaison worker 

Mentorship programs peer to peer – adult to adult 



School connectedness 

Peer group –works for children 

Gender neutral bathrooms – at elementary 

Increased use of alternative programs/assessments 

Survey of homestay changes 

Therapy dog in every school 

More funding 

Wellness grants in school – teachers and students - funding 

Serving vegetarian meal options with nutritional value in cafeteria 

Activities for diversity of learners 

Housing 

District wide goal/mandate 

Manage stress – stress management (x2) 

Personal person to help each child plan academic and school career 

New teacher mentorship/Induction time for new teachers 

More prep time 

Compassion challenge monthly 

Cultural diversity and inclusion at all schools 

Mindfulness – podcast run by students 

Celebrate all successes 

Relax bus schedule times so kids have more after school times 

Unit plans for teaching SS about mental health ie:  Mind Up 

STOP

Ban Cell Phones (x2) 

Current drug policy – consequence vs education/support 

Out of school suspensions – some students want to be home 

Stress/pressure without supports, re strategies 

Stop Contact interruptions 

Looking for “A” fix 

Stereotypical materials and facilities 

Excluding students from school/bus as a consequence 

Turing away people who want help because the problems aren’t perceived as big enough 

Calling out students for counselling in front of the class – find a private way 

CONTINUE 

Food available at school if kids hungry – Breakfast and Lunch programs (x3) 

Community Funding for Food programs 

Outside agency supports – Youth Family Service – Public Health – Youth Mental Health (x3) 

Nurse at school 

Accountability for all partners and stakeholders 



Educational re:  Technology Use 

Breakfast Programs at Elementary Level 

School Counsellor at every School/More Counsellors (x23 

Better access to counsellors for students (x2) 

Counsellor visiting classrooms to talk about topics/resources 

Meet kids where they are at 

Link Crew – helps alleviate anxiety 

With current plan to change EFAT – to focus on mental well being of staff/students/parents 

Clear communication around drug/alcohol policy – revisit 

Improving practices around mental health in general-communication awareness at high school (x2) 
Providing more resources and education for employees and families on mental health, understanding, 
empathy for students, the triggers and warning signs 

FSLW – continue 

Communication/working together – multi generational and multi school to ease transitions (x2) 

Developing school/community connectedness 

Community wrap around supports 

Therapy dog at every school 

Outdoor Activities 

Inclusive materials for classes(x2) 

Providing mental health resources 

Anti anxiety strategies 

Activity with all international students together, to make their relationships stronger and more 
relaxed 

Anti-bullying programs 

No bells in some schools 

Aromatherapy 

Find and expand programs to include all learners 

Mindfulness Minutes/Apps (x2) 

Fun Events 

Teaching mental health language to decrease stigma so that students feel that they can express 
their feelings and are what they need (x2) 

Teaching supports to all students so that they can access as they need 

Increasing/improving inclusion – heading down the right track but need more 

Recognize behaviours are a symptom not the problem (staff training) 

Mental Health Day 



START 

Asking parents which method of communication they would like 

Offering a non-tech option for notifications 

Facebook (for parents only) 

School App 

YAPP APP is very successful at some schools/encouraging more use (x2) 

Bring back TAG for consistent announcements/info 

Instagram (for students etc) 

Providing info about dual credits in a variety of forms – Parent/Student Info night is great 

Ensure Students are aware about academics 

Better communication to the wider community about our International Student Program 

Look at providing students with more post-secondary opportunities earlier 

More info on academic streams (as opposed to trades) 

Youth care workers as communicators with homes in schools 

Expand invites to other agencies and organizations 

Seeing School Board Trustees in schools more often 

Find a way for students to access Trustees easily – louder student voice 

Community engagement and connections day as once was done at June day 

How to access student reporting (parents) 

Improve communication via e-portfolio (more explicit sense of how child is doing) 

Look at other ways to reduce paper consumption 

Make process easier to access portfolio report card/include grades in portfolios 

Establish constant criteria that each school must meet for reporting 

Give grade 11 students access to scholarships 

Assign PR Council member to each school 

Youth engagement worker at all elementary schools 

Bring in more community resource people 

More communication with/to other community agencies – and to all staff about what’s going on at all 
schools 

Use food as a medium for connection and communication to community 

Putting a focus on the balance between human needs:  emotional, mental, physical and spiritual, through 
creation of space to help people connect 

Exploring ‘parent computers’ at school sites 

More access to counseling re career/post secondary at high school/start it earlier/not just trades (x2) 



STOP 

Assuming everyone has internet access/is online (x3) 

Using personal devices (staff) for School District purposes 

Assuming people check email at any hour of the day 

Depending on electronics – don’t rely on it to get the message out 

No more agendas 

No more TVs 

Guarding scholarships 

Feeling isolated 

Revisit the way parent-teacher conferences are done 

CONTINUE 

Begin day with same important message 

TV in halls (x2) 

Newsletters/Weekly emails of newsletters to parents, students and staff 

Monday morning Memos being emailed to parents 

Allow parents to request a paper copy of news or alerts 

Love e-portfolios – keep it online 

Like e-portfolios but also like the piece of paper at end of year 

Like the District Forum 

Teacher-Parent contact still valuable 

PR Living Special Story 

Education week with PR Living 

Open Houses 

Twitter 

YAPP APP (x3) 

Daily in person check-ins between staff (and students/parents) “How are you doing?” 

Include Community Members – invite to events 

Looking for consistency in student reporting K-12 



START 

Dual Credits – single contact point (ie:  VIU to SD47) 

Grounds Crew – dedicated to school gardens (curricular, ie:  re:  mulch) 

Sharing resources – ie:  City/SD/Reg. Dist etc.  Maintenance in particular.  Maintenance always tricky – SD, 
PACS, Schools – who else/all others 

Outdoor spaces/shelters (given our climate) (Secondary) – How to drive kids outside more beyond field 
spaces – similar to elementary’s safe spaces 

Sustainability – is this even doable – or define/redefine what sustainability is. 

What happens – where does money come for – for sustainability – would this take money away from 
something else? 

Master Gardener – CUPE involvement (hiring) summer care for gardens 

With regards to recycling, 3-Rs – wThis years champion – not there 

More bike opportunities – bike racks with roofs – expand bike library 

After school programs – variety/expand types - bigger 

0 Emissions/0 Waste/0 Litter lunches – solar panels/charging stations even/especially at older schools 

Zero Waste and Compost/Recycling Policy 

Compost 

School based recycling, compost 

Energy Consumption 

Building efficiency 

Resource kits – centralized – sharing high end resources 

Communication channels 

Feedback for teachers 

Tech availability support – more technology – uniformity in tech 

Adopt and implement the UN’s SDG’s to inform policy, ie:  waste reduction 

SD apprenticeship program – succession planning – ie:  carpentry kids start apprenticeship program 

Emphasis on trades 

Increase on academics post G12 

Bridging to programs 

Organize transitions from grad 6 all together to grade 7 throughout the school – also with some ESP SPED 
and PIE Students 

Trans meetings – but facilities ie:  a wing? 

LinkCrew have to commit to the two days in August 

Scholarship ‘end of school ‘ thinking/planning time – prior to grade 12 

Partnering some jobs (ie:  Grad transitions) – a)  New ideas/b)  Succession plan option 

Movement In-District (changes) 



STOP 

“SILOS” – SD47 Info to-from Community (ie:  invites to this event) 

Assuming everyone is tech savy 

Differing ‘costs’ class to class – ie:  some charge $10/French Book and some not at all 

CONTINUE 

Maintenance – Foreperson + Contractors – “on the job” – great crews 

Busing – great for field trips – expand for students – schools.  Bus will take kids from airport to Brooks but 
not to Edgehill and still need to get from ‘out of town’ to bus stop. 

Bus Services for field trips (no cost) 

No student Fees (x2) 

Community Partners – OLC amazing opportunity 

Food Supports – muffins, veggies, fruits, sustainable – from community families 

After school program(s) – variety/expand types - bigger 

Promote alternate transportation forms 

Improve business process 

Invest in schools 

Improve communications 

Explore ways to monitor bus ridership 



Diet Related Inclusion 

Healthy free food available to all students – not vending machine 

Food – Canada only grade 8 nation without a K-12 food program – nutritional needs - $?  Time? 

Lunch program at Brooks 

Reporting-Access 

Tech Equality 

Bus – Safe transportation for all 

Not enough $ for Special Needs Students to be supported in schools 

Staff supporting special needs students need more students 

Not enough environmental awareness and action within our schools, ie:  composting/recycling 

Get rid of water in vending machines – Grade 8s provided with water bottles 

Compost and recycling at Brooks – better system 

Lack of environmental push at Brooks 

Support for environmental issues 

Outdoor Ed opportunities for grades 8-11 bridge the gap – create opportunities – cross curricular 

Equal push for academic programs as well as trades tracks tour – no academic tour 

One Eco Team works 

Good environmental at elementary – doesn’t extend to Brooks 

School discipline policies need to be fair/consistent 

Not enough support re:  rehabilitation for students suspended for drugs/alcohol – review policy 

Review suspension policy overall – suspending can be counter-productive 

ISP – look for more support for students who have difficulty speaking English 

Importance of health of ‘whole person’ 

Yoga and meditation 

School wellness – wellness month 

Influence of technology and impacts on children.  Cell phones.  Question the need vs negative effects 

Technology improved wife, more access, labs, faster computers.  The tech budget needs to increase for all 
schools 

Phones and mobile devices – is time on used well?  How to use as tool – embrace technology – not a toy.  
Have to teach this.  Can’t assume it will be known – Coding Courses (ADST)  Who will help this/these skills 
be used? 

Stop thinking like Eyore and start thinking like Tigger 

Support for gifted/struggling learners 

Relationship building – workshops/retreats 

Indigenous Plan – connection – inter connectivity – engaged together.  What is important to Nation, to 
families?  What is success? 

Support community members who come in for AB Education/Nation Members, Knowledge Keepers – fair 
compensation 

How to reduce anxiety 

Climate Change – the Science not just the headlines – environment awareness incorporated, not just Earth 
Week – solar panels, green roofs 



Introduce mentorship/shadowing 

What happens after school grad? 

Awards/scholarships – post secondary paths – work and career 

More community connections 

More District-wide initiatives 

Full funding for resources so PACS are not fundraising to buy books, classroom resources, art supplies 

Better communication of what is available to teachers and students – resources, programs, community 
resources 

Creating connections between teachers ie:  Watch Brenee Brown together and discuss 

Teachers – collaboration – making space and time for teachers to share best practices. 

Globalization of students, programs and teachers 

School to school buddy programs 

Teacher/adult book clubs 

Upper admin connections 

Superintendent support 

Employee mobility 

Multiple paths for education outlined for students 

Middle School – the gap between elementary approach and high school is greatly damaging many 8/9’s 
success (x2) 

Grade 12 burn out – run out of steam 

Better Career prep/life prep/life skills/work force 

Class choices conflict with timetable. 

Not limiting student choices ie:  languages – should be able to take all three 

Before school care at Elementary 

Bus pass use more universal – ride stand by 

Bussing – Cranberry – City planning for Routes – Kid Safety – Shuttles – more routes 

Roads without shoulders – work with the City - 

ISP continued focus 



School District #47 Powell River

Student Achievement Report 2019 

Introduction 

School District 47 Powell River Board of Education works together with its key stakeholders in 
developing Strategic Goals and Actions in order to ensure that Educational and Operational 
outcomes meet the needs of students, staff, and our community.  

In 2015, following our last civic election, our Board created a District Strategic Plan to help 
guide the District during the Board's current term. This Plan has assisted schools in creating 
Objectives and Action Items to meet the needs of their students. This is our concluding annual 
report that closes out our four-year strategic plan.  

In addition to our student achievement report, please take time to review other District Key 
Information. 

Statement of Belief 

We believe that the public school system is an inclusive system and that students come to 
school with diverse needs and abilities. 

We also believe that all students have a right to an education and a responsibility to become 
active learners. 

We also believe positive relationships between students and teachers are central to effective 
teaching and learning, and that success is measured in the process itself as well as in the 
outcomes. 

We believe that together with School District employees and groups we can enable our 
students to realize their full potential.  

We believe that students have the following rights: 

 to learn in safe and caring environments
 to have their social, emotional, physical and intellectual needs met
 to have an education that prepares them for the world of the future
 to have experiences that provide multiple pathways to success

http://www.sd47.bc.ca/Publications/District%20Strategic%20Plan.pdf
http://www.sd47.bc.ca/about/info/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.sd47.bc.ca/about/info/Pages/default.aspx
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We believe that students have the following responsibilities: 

 to respect each other and all members of their school community
 to contribute to the learning opportunities offered to them

The Board of Education for School District No. 47 (Powell River) supported the following goals 

in their 2015-2018 Strategic Plan:  

Educational Excellence 

Engagement 

Connections 

System Sustainability 

Educational Excellence 

Educational excellence continues to be an ongoing focus in our School District.  As a District, we 

are faced with a high vulnerability factor for students entering our school system.  In every 

category, our students entering school are more vulnerable than the provincial average (link 

here).  We continue to provide supports to help reduce this vulnerability factor including Strong 

Start, pre-K assessments, kindergarten interventions, enhanced kindergarten orientation 

program, gradual entry and conferences, the Orca Bus, Changing Results for Young Children 

https://studentsuccess.gov.bc.ca/school-district/047/report/students-entering-school
https://studentsuccess.gov.bc.ca/school-district/047/report/students-entering-school
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working group, and transition meetings between early learning organizations and our schools. 

This work is ongoing and will continue next year as well. 

We have spent the past year continuing to implement the new curriculum and hosted several 

working groups to collaborate on how to improve student success. This has included various 

committees for Assessment, Communicating Student Learning, and a local Sexual Orientation 

and Gender Identity Network.  In addition, a Curriculum and Assessment Coordinator position 

was added to support implementation of innovative assessment across the District and the 

revised curriculum at the Secondary School. 

As well, schools in the District have undertaken a number of projects to increase cross-

curricular concepts within the new curriculum.  Brooks created C3, a cross-curricular Grade 9 

program that ensured core and curricular competencies were met through project-based, 

problem-based, and inquiry-based learning.  Their program consisted of math, socials, science 

and ADST throughout five blocks of the day.  They stayed together as a cohort and worked 

through cross-curricular projects simultaneously offered by three teachers. The Law 12 class 

held a new guided student-driven inquiry project that looked at human rights and law policy 

with positive feedback.   

Edgehill completed a project that explored innovative learning practices by holding hour of 

code centres for students to explore coding mindsets.  This initiative as well as other “high 

achievement” activities helped stretch differentiation for all learners. 

Texada explored project based learning with independent projects for all students in their 

school.  Students used varieties of presentation styles and they created opportunities for a 

display for a public audience in the community.   

FSA 

The FSA continues to be a Ministry assessment administered in October each year to students 

in Grades 4 and 7. We have a higher participation rate than the provincial average, which may 

influence our District results (link here).  Although we are slightly below the provincial average 

in most areas in grade 4 for 2017/2018, some of our grade 7 results fall within the provincial 

average.  We are anticipating our results will improve in the next years given our District focus 

https://studentsuccess.gov.bc.ca/school-district/047/report/fsa
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and initiatives around literacy and numeracy.  This is only one indication of student 

achievement. Our District initiatives are more reflective of our ongoing achievement results. 

District Elementary Literacy Assessments 

We have continued to maintain steady results in our local District Reading and Writing 

Assessments.  Each of our schools had literacy intervention teachers to help students who were 

not reading or writing at grade level.  Literacy continues to be a focus for us as a District and 

this year along with the intervention teachers being in place, we have several additional 

initiatives planned to improve student success.  We will be identifying individual struggling 

students and meeting with administrators each term to check on progress and adaptions of the 

interventions put into place.  We have also provided some in service training to our 

intervention teachers to help provide consistency and improve practice.   

District Elementary Numeracy Assessments 

We have seen consistent improvement in our District numeracy assessments in elementary.  

Most grades improved in all areas of the assessment (number, patterns, space and shape, 

statistics and probability).  The ongoing efforts to provide interventions in numeracy at each 

school have had a positive impact.  To continue our momentum in this area, we will provide 

interventions again this year in targeted areas.  We will be identifying individual struggling 

students and meeting with administrators each term to check on progress and adaptations of 

the interventions put into place.  We will also be maintaining our work with the Island 

Numeracy Network to continue to promote transforming mathematical teaching and learning. 

Six-Year Completion Rate 

The Ministry Data for completion rates (2017/2018) is below the provincial average, although 

when looking at it from a 5-year perspective, we fall within the provincial average (link here).  

Although the provincial data is not available from last year, when looking at our District data, 

we should see an increase in our completion rate, both as a whole and specifically with our 

Indigenous students. Several interventions were put into place last year that have improved 

our completion rates including identifying, supporting, and tracking at-risk students has been 

implemented.   Those interventions will continue this year as well as some additional 

strategies. 

https://studentsuccess.gov.bc.ca/school-district/047/report/completion-rates
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Grade Transitions 

Our grade transitions continue to stay at a steady pace with the 2017/2018 year showing 

minimal differences between all students, special needs students, and Indigenous students 

(link here).  This is reflective of the work being done to differentiate instruction and will 

continue throughout this school year. 

Indigenous Learners 

The District has an ongoing goal of reducing the gap in achievement between Indigenous and 

Non-Indigenous learners.  We are seeing an increase in our results in our Ministry Assessments 

as well as in our grad rates.  Although this does not show up on the District data for 2017/2018, 

we expect to see improvement from last year’s results once it is published.  We have created a 

template for identifying Indigenous students at risk and have assigned different adults to 

connect with those students with positive results.  This year was the first year that Brooks was 

able to offer BC First Nations 12.  This was an incredibly successful course.  These projects will 

continue next year as well as other initiatives.  One such initiative is an inquiry project for the 

NOIIE, which will look at school connectedness in the transition from elementary schools to 

Brooks Secondary.   

Satisfaction Survey 

Our satisfaction survey results (link here) indicates that, although our secondary students fall 

below the district average when questioned around feeling welcome at school and respecting 

others for the 2017/2018 school year, they fall within the provincial average for the range of 

the past five years.  Our elementary school students had a higher number of children feeling 

welcome at school and respecting others than the provincial average.   Satisfaction around 

what they are learning in school and learning about how to be healthy all fall within the 

provincial range over the past 5 years.  

When looking at the satisfaction survey results (link here) for grade 10 and 12 students 

regarding career education and preparation for their future, again, all student categories fell 

within the provincial average when looking at the past 5 years.  In looking at the 2017/2018 

results, our grade 10 Indigenous students were far above the provincial average for being 

satisfied that school is preparing them for post-secondary.  Continued work in these areas are 

planned for next year, particularly with the new Career Life Educations and Career Life 

Connections curriculum, as well as the Capstone Project in grade 12.  With these new 

https://studentsuccess.gov.bc.ca/school-district/047/report/grade-to-grade-transitions
https://studentsuccess.gov.bc.ca/school-district/047/report/student-satisfaction
https://studentsuccess.gov.bc.ca/school-district/047/report/post-secondary-career-prep
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curriculums, as well as our incredibly successful Dual Credit Program, we are hoping to see an 

increase in students continuing to post-secondary after graduating.   

Engagement and Connections 

Board Vision and Strategic Plan 

With the Board’s commitment to collaboration, a great deal of planning last year went into 

gathering input from all the stakeholders regarding the new Strategic Plan.  Representatives 

from all stakeholders (Trustees, Teachers, CUPE, Admin, Students, Parents, and community 

members) were all invited to share their ideas and provide input in creating the new plan. 

Well Ahead Project 

School District 47 applied for a two-year wellness grant through the Well Ahead Project.  

Through this initiative, a facilitator was brought in to talk to stakeholders (CUPE, Teachers, and 

Admin) about wellness and what that term means to them in relationship to their occupation.  

There were a few common threads but specifically all stakeholders identified the need for 

improving professional relationships.  With additional funding from the Board, the project will 

be continued next year with plans to specifically address that common thread of improving 

professional relationships throughout the District.   

Wellness Project at Henderson 

After several years of work with PBS strategies, the staff at Henderson applied for an inquiry 

project through the BCTF to look at staff and student wellness throughout the school.  The 

District matched the funding provided by the BCTF.  There were three separate inquiry projects 

which looked at questions around wellness.  All staff involved found it to be an informative 

experience and the staff hosted a sharing session for anyone interested.  Many of the strategies 

they found to be most effective will be continued in their school next year. 

Brook’s LEAP Project 

To help ease the transition for students coming into grade 8 at the high school, Brooks has 

established a LEAP team.  This team provides an opportunity for leadership for the grade 11/12 

students as well as supporting a cohort of new students with fun activities to help those 

students feel welcome.   
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Great Bear Rainforest Program  

This year the District launched a pilot program springing from the Outdoor Learning Program 

implemented at Kelly Creek Elementary School.  This program invited two grade seven students 

from each elementary school to participate in a leadership/outdoor program.  The students 

met weekly, worked on leadership skills, and participated in outdoor learning activities.  This 

incredible project culminated with a week-long kayak trip up in the Great Bear Rainforest.  

These students already have many of the introductory skills developed in the Eco Adventure 

Program at Brooks. 

System Sustainability 

Food Literacy Project 

The District has hired a Food Literacy Coordinator to help facilitate understanding around the 

importance of food and where food comes from.  She will also assist in supporting school 

gardens with the intent of them becoming more of a sustainable food source to be utilized in 

school’s breakfast and lunch programs. 

French Immersion 

French Immersion continues to be a popular program held at James Thomson Elementary.  

Although typically these students tend to be fully meeting expectations in literacy and math, 

the French Immersion teachers are hoping to focus on these topics in their professional 

development.  They are also interested in becoming more cohesive in their assessment 

practices. 

Outdoor Education 

Along with the leadership program offered at Kelly Creek, our Eco Adventure Program 

continues to be incredibly successful.  Students spend a semester taking their learning 

outdoors, developing leadership skills and gaining certificates which could assist in their future 

endeavors.  These students are also instrumental in planning and implementing the outdoor 

adventure program for grade 7 students that continues to be a culminating event for students 

before they enter high school. 



School District #47 Powell River

In addition to the program above, outdoor programs continue to be created for each grade 

level within the socials and science curriculum to be implemented at the Outdoor Learning 

Centre.  These programs are incredibly popular as it gives students the opportunity to take 

their learning outdoors in a meaningful way.  This emphasis on place-based learning is 

something that continues to be built on within our District. 

Next Steps 

The new Board is completing its’ inaugural 4 year strategic plan through a collaborative process 

with all stakeholders using the themes of learner success, engagement and connections and 

organizational sustainability. The board has committed to two new Administrative positions 

District Principal, Learning and Innovation and District Co-coordinator Curriculum Assessment 

and Instruction. These positions were created to enhance the focus on improving student 

learning, creating a framework for continuous improvement through a growth mindset culture 

of collaboration. 



 
  

2018-19 Financial Statement Summary 
Prepared by Steve Hopkins 

www.sd47.bc.ca 
4351 Ontario Avenue 
Powell River, BC V8A 1V3 

The information here is intended to provide a brief overview of 
the years financial statements. The statements themselves are 

organized into statements, notes and schedules. Schedule 2 
documents provide information related to the operating fund. 

Schedule 3 the Special Purpose Funds and 4 the Capital. 

This summary is focused on the operating spending while 
highlighting other aspects of the operations. 

Salaries 
Teachers  9,047,617 
Principals and Vice Principals   1,439,701 
Educational Assistants  2,100,569 
Support Staff   1,871,031 
Other Professionals   1,273,997 
Substitutes      872,900 
Total Salaries     16,605,815 

Employee Benefits    3,735,542 
Total Salary and Benefits    20,341,357 

Services and Supplies 
Services  1,984,399 
Student Transportation  17,731 
Professional development and Travel     366,861 
Rentals and Leases      213,584 
Dues and Fees   354,963 
Insurance  69,765 
Supplies  1,986,956 
Utilities     562,740 
Total Service and Supplies    5,556,999 

Total Operating Expense     25,898,356 

Operational Spending ($) Special Purpose 
Fund Summary 
 These funds are all independent of one 
another, each fund has specific criteria 
regarding the nature of the spending with 
most governed by contracts that layout the 
various deliverables associated with each. 

School Generated Funds – Represent money 
flowing through schools outside of the 
accounting system and consolidated for the 
purpose of financial statement presentation.  

Examples: Terry Fox Donations, Jump Rope 
for Heart, Field Trips, Merchandise Sales, etc. 

Total Revenue and Spending of approximately 
$1.7 million dollars 

Classroom enhancement Fund - $ 2.25 million 
for approximately 18 additional teachers 
intended to reduce class sizes and provide for 
additional ancillary supports such as learning 
assistance and counselling. 

Auditory Outreach Program - $ 1.2 million 
dollars managed by the Powell River School 
Board on behalf of the provincial education 
system in support of children with auditory 
issues.  



 

Operating Funding 
(millions) 

Ministry of Education   $ 23,191 
Other Provincial Grants    114 
Tuition     951 
Other Revenue    1,235 
Rental Income     253 
Interest   72

 $25,816 

Student Enrollment (FTE) 
September  

Elementary    1,239 
Secondary  826 

   2,065 

Regular Staffing (FTE) 
Þ 149 Educators 
Þ   87 Support Staff 
Þ    17 Other Staff 

Capital Fund Summary 

Ministry Funding  $974,881 
Building Improvements $955,780 
Other Spending $216,350 

Internally Restricted (appropriated) by Board for:  2019 
School & Program Based Resources: 

Technology Initiatives 
Curriculum Implementation 
Educational Change Committee 
Student Achievement Initiatives 
Wellness Project 
Eco & Sustainability Initiatives 
Social Worker 
School Resources Carried Forward 
Contingency Fund        

$20,000 
68,500 
10,000 

195,000 
14,400 
7,500 

75,000 
36,118 

250,000 

Subtotal Internally Restricted Operating Surplus    676,518 

Unrestricted Operating Surplus 

Local Capital: 
Replacement Fund for Artificial Playfield 
Ongoing Investment into OLC 
Equipment Replacement Fund  

   236,278 

250,000 
80,000 
67,530 

397,530 

Funds Available for Future Operations 
 

Total Revenue 
$25,816 

Accumulated 
Surplus 
$913 

Total Spending 
$25,898 
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School District No. 47 (Powell River)

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

On behalf of School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

Version: 3600-2854-9872

The external auditors, MNP LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally 

accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements.  The external auditors have 

full and free access to financial management of School District No. 47 (Powell River) and meet when required. 

The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination 

and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 47 (Powell River) have been prepared by 

management in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and 

Accountability Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the 

Province of British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are 

management's responsibility.  Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and 

schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information 

contained in the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide 

reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial 

information is produced.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's 

judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with 

certainty until future periods.

The Board of Education of School District No. 47 (Powell River) (called the ''Board'') is responsible for 

ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises 

these responsibilities through the Board.  The Board reviews internal financial statements on a monthly basis 

and externally audited financial statements yearly.

Page 1 September 24, 2019  11:01



Statement 1

2019 2018

Actual Actual

$ $

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,183,463            4,950,302            

Accounts Receivable

Other (Note 4) 206,705               175,899               

Total Financial Assets 4,390,168            5,126,201            

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Other (Note 5) 1,871,665            1,726,866            

Unearned Revenue (Note 7) 635,371               1,203,650            

Deferred Revenue (Note 8) 157,965               173,136               

Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 9) 37,887,922          38,479,048          

Employee Future Benefits (Note 10) 636,197               572,382               

Total Liabilities 41,189,120          42,155,082          

Net Financial Assets (Debt) (36,798,952)        (37,028,881)        

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 6) 47,445,149          48,142,354          

Prepaid Expenses 221,356               156,406               

Total Non-Financial Assets 47,666,505          48,298,760          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Note 12) 10,867,553          11,269,879          

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2019

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Approved by the Board

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Statement 2

2019 2019 2018

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 18)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 26,670,629          27,576,811          26,158,009          

Other 50,000                114,100               113,200               

Tuition 750,000               950,616               972,675               

Other Revenue 2,796,965            3,105,194            3,309,419            

Rentals and Leases 183,500               253,207               221,989               

Investment Income 50,000                74,506                59,631                

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 9) 1,566,007            1,566,007            1,554,058            

Total Revenue 32,067,101          33,640,441          32,388,981          

Expenses

Instruction 25,923,720          26,868,124          25,144,904          

District Administration 1,109,673            1,064,306            1,028,549            

Operations and Maintenance 4,756,899            5,036,111            4,914,704            

Transportation and Housing 974,938               1,074,226            1,024,507            

Total Expense 32,765,230          34,042,767          32,112,664          

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (698,129)             (402,326)             276,317               

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 11,269,879          10,993,562          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 10,867,553          11,269,879          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Statement 4

2019 2019 2018

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 18)

$ $ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (698,129) (402,326) 276,317 

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (1,191,231) (1,747,059) 

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets (Note 6) 1,888,436 1,888,436 1,846,477 

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets 1,888,436 697,205 99,418 

Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses (64,950) (6,858) 

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets - (64,950) (6,858) 

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt),

 before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) 1,190,307 229,929 368,877 

Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) 229,929 368,877 

Net Financial Assets (Debt), beginning of year (37,028,881)        (37,397,758)        

Net Financial Assets (Debt), end of year (36,798,952)        (37,028,881)        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Statement 5

2019 2018

Actual Actual

$ $

Operating Transactions

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (402,326)            276,317             

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital

Decrease (Increase)

Accounts Receivable (30,806)              (6,129)                

Prepaid Expenses (64,950)              (6,858)                

Increase (Decrease)

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 144,799             (17,950)              

Unearned Revenue (568,279)            401,690             

Deferred Revenue (15,171)              (149,701)            

Employee Future Benefits 63,815               57,449               

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,888,436          1,846,477          

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (1,566,007)         (1,554,058)         

Total Operating Transactions (550,489)            847,237             

Capital Transactions

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (1,191,231)         (1,747,059)         

Total Capital Transactions (1,191,231)         (1,747,059)         

Financing Transactions

Capital Revenue Received 974,881             1,398,723          

Total Financing Transactions 974,881             1,398,723          

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (766,839)            498,901             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 4,950,302          4,451,401          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 4,183,463          4,950,302          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:

Cash 4,183,463          4,950,302          

4,183,463          4,950,302          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 3600-2854-9872
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POWELL RIVER BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 47  

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

7 

NOTE 1 AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 

The School District under authority of the School Act of British Columbia is a corporation under 
the name of "The Board of Education of School District No. 47 (Powell River)", and operates as 
"School District No. 47 (Powell River)."  A board of education (Board) elected for a four-year 
term governs the School District.  The School District provides educational programs to students 
enrolled in schools in the district, and is principally funded by the Province of British Columbia 
through the Ministry of Education. School District No. 47 (Powell River) is exempt from federal 
and provincial corporate taxes. 

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
REPORTING PRACTICES 

a) Basis of Accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. This Section
requires that the financial statements be prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards except in regard to the accounting for government transfers as set out in
Notes 2(g) and 2(k).

In November 2011, Treasury Board provided a directive through Restricted Contributions
Regulation 198/2011 providing direction for the reporting of restricted contributions whether
they are received or receivable by the School District before or after this regulation was in
effect.

As noted in notes 2 (g) and 2 (k), Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and
Accountability Act and its related regulations require the School District to recognize
government transfers for the acquisition of capital assets into revenue on the same basis as the
related amortization expense. As these transfers do not contain stipulations that create a
liability, Canadian public sector accounting standards would require these grants to be fully
recognized into revenue. The impact of this difference on the financial statements of the
School District is as follows:

Year-ended June 30, 2018 - decrease in annual surplus by $155,335
June 30, 2018 - increase in accumulated surplus and decrease in deferred contributions by
$38,479,048
Year-ended June 30, 2019 – decrease in annual surplus by $591,126
June 30, 2019 – increase in accumulated surplus and decrease in deferred contributions by
$37,887,922
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
REPORTING PRACTICES (Continued) 

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities with original terms to
maturity of three months or less when purchased.

c) Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable are measured at amortized cost and shown net of allowance for doubtful
accounts.

d) Prepaid Expenses

Insurance premiums, and software licensing and support, are included as a prepaid expense
and stated at acquisition cost and are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit
from it.

e) Tangible Capital Assets

The following criteria apply:
• Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost.  Donated

tangible capital assets   are recorded at their fair market value on the date of
donation.

• Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at
substantial completion.

• Sites and buildings that no longer contribute to the ability of the district to provide
services are written-down to residual value.

• Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off.
• Work-in-progress is not amortized until after the asset has been completed or put

into use.
• Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of

the asset and commences the year following acquisition. Estimated useful life is as
follows:

Buildings 40 years 
Furniture & Equipment 10 years 
Vehicles 10 years 
Computer Hardware 
Computer Software 

5 years 
5 years 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
REPORTING PRACTICES (Continued) 

f) Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods
and receipt of proceeds for services or products to be delivered in a future period. Revenue 
will be recognized in that future period when the courses, services, or products are provided. 

g) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue

Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description
of restricted contributions in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by
Treasury Board.

When restrictions are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in a
manner consistent with the circumstances and evidence used to support the initial recognition
of the contributions received as a liability as detailed in Note 2 (k).

Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as
deferred capital revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the
statement of operations.  This accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of
Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be
recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met
unless the transfer contains a stipulation that creates a liability in which case the transfer is
recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.  See Note 2(a) for the
impact of this policy on these financial statements.

h) Financial Instruments

A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations
to receive or deliver economic benefits. The financial assets and financial liabilities portray
these rights and obligations in the financial statements. The School District recognizes a
financial instrument when it becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accrued
liabilities and accounts payable.

All financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost and the associated
transaction costs are added to the carrying value of these investments upon initial recognition.
Transaction costs are incremental costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a
financial asset or a financial liability.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
REPORTING PRACTICES (Continued) 

h) Financial Instruments (continued)

Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments are
recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses. Upon settlement, the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the statement of remeasurement gains and losses
and recognized in the statement of operations. Interest and dividends attributable to financial
instruments are reported in the statement of operations.

All financial assets except derivatives are tested annually for impairment. When financial
assets are impaired, impairment losses are recorded in the statement of operations. A write-
down of a portfolio investment to reflect a loss in value is not reversed for a subsequent
increase in value.

For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is
used to determine interest revenue or expense.

i) Measurement Uncertainty

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in
Note 2(a) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported
amounts for assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Significant areas requiring the use of management
estimates relate to the impairment of assets, rates for amortization, allowance for doubtful
accounts, and estimated employee future benefits.  Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
REPORTING PRACTICES (Continued) 

j) Employee Future Benefits

The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-
vested benefits for certain employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements.

The School District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and
non-vested benefits under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave,
accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation,
overtime and death benefits. The benefits cost is actuarially determined using the projected
unit credit method pro-rated on service and using management’s best estimate of expected
salary escalation, termination rates, retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate used to
measure obligations is based on the cost of borrowing.

The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected
average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of active employees covered under the plan.

The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2019 and projected
to March 31, 2022. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2022 for use at June
30, 2022. For the purposes of determining the financial position of the plans and the
employee future benefit costs, a measurement date of March 31 was adopted for all periods
subsequent to July 1, 2004.

The School District and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and
Municipal Pension Plan.  The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are
not separated. The costs are expensed as incurred.

k) Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave
rise to the revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals
cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is
impracticable.

Contributions received or where eligibility criteria have been met are recognized as revenue
except where the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below. Eligibility
criteria are the criteria that the School District has to meet in order to receive the
contributions including authorization by the transferring government.

For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their
use, revenue is recognized as follows:
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
REPORTING PRACTICES (Continued) 

k) Revenue Recognition (continued)

• Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and
recognized as revenue in the year related expenses are incurred,

• Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites
are purchased,  and

• Contributions restricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions other than sites are
recorded as deferred capital revenue and amortized over the useful life of the related
assets.

Donated tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and 
amortized over the useful life of the assets. Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair 
market value when received or receivable. 

The accounting treatment for restricted contributions is not consistent with the requirements 
of Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be 
recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met 
unless the transfer contains a stipulation that meets the criteria for liability recognition in 
which case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is 
extinguished.  See Note 2(a) for the impact of this policy on these financial statements. 

Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service 
is performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed. 

Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or 
related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue 
balance. 

l) Expenditures

Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services
received during the year is expensed.

• Categories of Salaries
o Principals, Vice Principals, and Directors of Instruction employed under an

administrative officer contract are categorized as Principals and Vice Principals.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
REPORTING PRACTICES (Continued) 

l) Expenditures (continued)

o Superintendents, Assistant Superintendents, Secretary-Treasurers, Trustees and
other employees excluded from union contracts are categorized as Other
Professionals.

• Allocation of Costs
o Operating expenses are reported by function, program, and object. Whenever

possible, expenditures are determined by actual identification. Additional costs
pertaining to specific instructional programs, such as special and aboriginal
education, are allocated to these programs. All other costs are allocated to regular
programs.

o Actual salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are
allocated based on the time spent in each function and program.
School-based clerical salaries are allocated to school administration and partially
to other programs to which they may be assigned. Principals and Vice Principals
salaries are allocated to school administration and may be partially allocated to
other programs to recognize their other responsibilities.

o Employee benefits and allowances are allocated to the same programs, and in the
same proportions, as the individual’s salary.

o Supplies and services are allocated based on actual identification of program.

m) Going Concern disclosure

The School District has implemented CPA Canada Handbook Section 1400, General
Standards of Financial Statement Presentation. This standard includes requirements for
management to assess and disclose an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management has made its assessment and concluded there is no issue regarding the School
District’s ability to continue as a going concern based on the assumption that the current
funding levels are maintained and any committed additional future funding is received. If
there are significant declines in funding, expenses will be adjusted to match committed
funding.

n) Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses

A statement of re-measurement gains and losses has not been presented as the District does
not hold any financial assets or liabilities that would give rise to remeasurement gains or
losses.
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
REPORTING PRACTICES (Continued) 

o) Liability for Contaminated Sites

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an
environmental standard. The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability
for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and
all the following criteria are met:

• An environmental standard exists
• Contamination exceeds the environmental standard
• The School District is directly responsible or accepts responsibility
• It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up
• A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation 
including operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation 
strategy for a contaminated site. 

p) New Accounting Standards

Effective July 1, 2022 the School District will be required to adopt PS3400 Revenue. Under
the standard, transactions that include performance obligations are identified as “exchange
contracts” while those that do not have performance obligations are identified as “non-
exchange contracts”. Revenues from exchange contracts are to be recognized when the
underlying performance obligations have been satisfied while revenues from non-exchange
contracts are to be recognized when received or receivable. This standard may be applied
retroactively or prospectively and early adoption is permitted. The impact of adopting this
standard on the School District’s financial results cannot be determined at this time.

Effective July 1, 2021 the school District will be required to adopt PS3280 Asset Retirement
Obligations. This standard establishes when to recognize and how to measure an asset
retirement obligation. This standard may be applied retroactively or prospectively and early
adoption is permitted. The impact of adopting this standard on the School District’s financial
results cannot be determined at this time
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NOTE 3 EXPENSE BY OBJECT 

2019 2018

Salaries $    19,216,327 $    17,738,382

Benefits 4,249,168 4,000,669

Service and supplies 8,688,836 8,527,136

Amortization 1,888,436 1,846,477

$    34,042,767 $    32,112,664

NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

2019 2018

Due from Federal Government $   52,660 $   53,371

Due from Others 154,045 122,528

$ 206,705 $  175,899

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

2019 2018

Trade Payables
Wages Payable
Deductions Payable

$ 461,422
195,874

1,214,369

$ 465,236
166,326

1,095,304

$    1,871,665 $    1,726,866
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NOTE 6 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 

June 30, 2019 

Cost:

Balance at
July 1,

2018 Additions Disposals

Balance at
June 30,

2019

Sites $   4,038,922 $ $ $   4,038,922

Buildings 66,097,451 955,780 67,053,231

Buildings – work in progress

Furniture & Equipment 1,293,799 214,187 50,895 1,457,091

Vehicles 1,499,375 21,264 24,473 1,496,166

Computer Hardware 372,365 372,365

Computer Software 103,495 103,495

Total $ 73,405,407 $1,191,231 $7 $74,521,270

Accumulated Amortization:

Balance at
July 1,

2018 Additions Disposals

Balance at
June 30,

2019

Sites $ - $ $ $ -
Buildings 23,966,796 1,513,946 25,480,742

Furniture & Equipment 491,529 129,380 50,895 570,014

Vehicles 648,241 149,938 24,473 773,706

Computer Hardware 133,053 74,473 207,526

Computer Software 23,434 20,699 44,133

Total $  25,263,053 $ 1,888,436 $75,368 $  27,076,121
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NOTE 6 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

June 30, 2018 

Cost:

Balance at
July 1,

2017 Additions Disposals

Balance at
June 30,

2018

Sites $   4,038,922 $ $ $   4,038,922

Buildings 64,824,263 1,273,188 66,097,451

Buildings – work in progress

Furniture & Equipment 1,260,954 142,188 109,343 1,293,799

Vehicles 1,493,253 176,887 170,765 1,499,375

Computer Hardware 338,001 124,783 90,419 372,365

Computer Software 73,482 30,013 103,495

Total $ 72,028,875 $1,747,059 $370,527 $ 73,405,407

Accumulated Amortization:

Balance at
July 1,

2017 Additions Disposals

Balance at
June 30,

2018

Sites $ - $ $ $ -
Buildings 22,478,035 1,488,761 23,966,796

Furniture & Equipment 474,777 126,095 109,343 491,529

Vehicles 669,681 149,325 170,765 648,241

Computer Hardware 155,872 67,600 90,419 133,053

Computer Software 8,738 14,696 23,434

Total $  23,787,103 $1,846,477 $370,527 $25,263,053

Net Book Value: 

Net Book Value
June 30, 2019

Net Book Value June
30, 2018

Sites $ 4,038,922 $ 4,038,922

Buildings 41,572,489 42,130,655

Buildings – work in progress

Furniture & Equipment 887,077 802,270

Vehicles 722,460 851,134

Computer Hardware 164,839 239,312

Computer Software 59,362 80,061

Total $      47,445,149 $ 48,142,354
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NOTE 7 UNEARNED REVENUE 

Unearned revenue consists of contributions received for services to be delivered in a future 
period.  Changes in unearned revenue are as follows: 

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Balance, beginning of year $1,203,650 $801,960

Changes for the year:

Increase:

Tuition fees 616,505 1,193,333

Other 18,866 111,211

635,371 1,304,544

Decrease:

Tuition fees 1,203,650 749,152

Other 153,702

1,203,650 902,854

Net changes for the year

Balance, end of year

(568,279)

$635,371

401,690

$1,203,650

NOTE 8 DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of 
a restricted contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury 
Board, i.e., the stipulations associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been 
fulfilled.  

2019
Total

2018
Total

Balance, beginning of year $   173,136 322,837

Increases:
Provincial Grant – Ministry of Ed $4,330,934 $4,212,780

Federal Grants 0 0

Other 1,909,870 1,714,698

Investment income

6,240,804 5,917,014

Decreases:

Transfers to Revenue 6,255,975 6,077,179

Net Changes for the year (15,171) (149,701)

Balance, end of the year $   157,965 $   173,136
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NOTE 9 DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE 

Deferred capital revenue  includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the 
contributor for the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted 
contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. Once 
spent, the contributions are amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired.  Changes to 
deferred capital revenue are as follows: 

Deferred Cap
Revenue

Unspent
Def. Cap
Revenue

Total
2019 2018

Balance, beginning of year $38,479,048 $   0 $  38,479,048 38,634,383

Increases:

Transfers from DC - capital additions 974,881 974,881 1,398,723

Transfers from DC – WIP

Provincial Grants – MEd 941,348 941,348 1,362,263

Provincial Grants – Other 33,533 33,533 36,460

Other Revenue

974,881 974,881 1,949,762 2,797,446

Decreases:

Amortization 1,566,007 1,566,007 1,554,058

Transfers to DCR - Capital Additions 974,881 974,881 1,398,723

Transfers to DCR – WIP

Transfers to capital expense

Net (591,126) 0 (591,126) (155,335)

Balance, end of the year $37,887,922 $    0 $  37,887,922 $ 38,479,048
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 

Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, 
retirement/severance, and death benefits. Funding is provided when the benefits are paid and 
accordingly, there are no plan assets.  Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, the School 
District has provided for the payment of these benefits.  

The period of amortization is equal to the expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) 
of active employees. 

2019 2018

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – April 1 $ 660,110 $  641,516
Service Cost 52,690 48,807
Interest Cost 19,027 18,281
Benefit Payments (28,567) (34,246)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 121,650 (14,248)

Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 $ 824,910 $ 660,110

Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year 
Accrued Benefit Obligation – March 31 $ 824,910 $ 660,110

Funded Status - Surplus/(Deficit) (824,910) (660,110)
Employer Contributions After Measurement Date
Benefit Expense After Measurement Date

6,777
(21,891)

773
(17,929)

Unamortized Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 203,827 104,884

Accrued Benefit Asset/(Liability) – June 30 $ (636,197) $ (572,382)

Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability 
Accrued Benefit Liability (Asset) – July 1 $   572,382 $   514,933
Net Expense for Fiscal Year 98,386 92,469
Employer Contributions (34,572) (35,019)

Accrued Benefit Asset/(Liability) – June 30 $  636,197 $  572,382

Components of Net Benefit Expense 
Service Cost $  56,119 $  49,778
Interest Cost 19,560 18,468
Amortization of Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 22,707 24,223

Net Benefit Expense (Income) $  98,386 $   92,469
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (Continued) 

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted for measuring the School District’s accrued benefit 
obligations are: 

2019 2018

Discount Rate – April 1 2.75% 2.75%

Discount Rate – March 31 2.50% 2.75%

Long Term Salary Growth – April 1 2.50%     + seniority 2.50%     + seniority

Long Term Salary Growth – March 31 2.50%     + seniority 2.50%     + seniority

EARSL – March 31 9.7 9.4

NOTE 11 EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS 

The school district and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal 
Pension Plan, jointly trusteed pension Plans. The board of trustees for these plans represents plan 
members and employers and is responsible for the management of the pension plan including 
investment of the assets and administration of benefits.  The pension plans are multi-employer 
contributory pension plans.  Basic pension benefits provided are based on a formula. The 
Teachers’ Pension Plan has about 46,000 active members from school districts, and 
approximately 38,000 retired members from school districts. The Municipal Pension Plan has 
about 197,000 active members, of which approximately 24,000 are from school districts.  

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans 
and the adequacy of plan funding.  The most recent actuarial valuation of the Teachers’ Pension 
Plan as at December 31, 2017 indicated a $1,656 million surplus for basic pension benefits.  The 
next valuation will be as at December 31, 2020 with results available in 2021.   

The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2015 
indicated a $2.224 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits.  The next valuation will be 
as at December 31, 2018 with results available in 2019.  

Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer 
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting).  This is 
because the Plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate with the 
result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, plan assets and 
cost to individual employers participating in the plans. 

The School District No. 47 (Powell River) paid $2,031,937 for employer contributions to these 
plans for the year ended June 30, 2019 and $2,074,089 for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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NOTE 12 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 

Internally Restricted (appropriated) by Board for: 2019 2018 

School & Program Based Resources : 
Technology Initiatives 
Curriculum Implementation 
Educational Change Committee 
Dual Credit Course Development
Student Achievement Initiatives 
Wellness Project 
Eco & Sustainability Initiatives 
Secondary Leadership Blocks 
Social Worker 
School Resources Carried Forward 
Contingency Fund    

$      20,000 
68,500 
10,000 

- 
195,000 
14,400 
7,500 

- 
75,000 
36,118 

250,000 

   $30,000 
68,500 
10,000 
20,000    

     195,000 
27,500 

- 
60,398     
75,000 
44,491 

250,000 

Subtotal Internally Restricted Operating Surplus    676,518    781,429 

Unrestricted Operating Surplus 

Local Capital: 

Continuation of Paving Project (18/19) 
Security Camera System (18/19) 
Replacement Fund for Artificial Playfield  
Ongoing Investment into Outdoor Learning Centre 
Equipment Replacement Fund  

Investment In Capital Assets 

   236,278 

-
-

250,000 
80,000 
67,530 

9,557,227 

   214,264 

60,000 
60,000 

250,000 
130,000 
110,880 

9,663,306 

Total Available for Future Operations $10,867,553 $11,269,879 

NOTE 13  INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Interfund transfers between the operating, special purpose and capital funds are reported on 
Schedule 1 (Statement of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund). For the year ended 
June 30, 2019 there were no transfers between funds.  
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NOTE 14 CONTINGENCIES 

Ongoing Legal Proceedings 

In the ordinary course of operations, the School District has legal proceedings brought against it 
and provision has been included in liabilities where appropriate. It is the opinion of management 
that final determination of these claims will not have a material effect on the financial position or 
operations of the School District. 

NOTE 15 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia 
ministries, agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown 
corporations.  Transactions with these entities, unless disclosed separately, are generally 
considered to be in the normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount.  

NOTE 16 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

Operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of 
Education and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs.  These financial 
statements have been prepared under the assumption that the School District operates as a “going 
concern”. 

NOTE 17 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 

The School District presently is unable to estimate future obligations related to the removal and 
disposal of asbestos which is believed to be prevalent throughout School District owned buildings 
built prior to the mid 1980s. At present such estimates can only be provided for buildings that are 
in the process of being decommissioned. Over the period to the required implementation in 2022 
of a new PSAS standard PS3280 Asset Retirement Obligations the School District will be 
working towards establishing reliable estimates in respect of asbestos removal and disposal 
throughout all relevant School District buildings. 
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NOTE 18 BUDGET FIGURES 

Budget figures included in the financial statements were approved by the Board through the 
adoption of an amended annual budget on February 12, 2019.  The Board adopted a preliminary 
annual budget on June 19, 2018.  The amended budget is used for comparison purposes, as these 
are based on actual student enrollments.  The difference between the two budgets is as follows: 

2019 2019

Amended Preliminary Difference

Revenues 

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 26,670,629 26,292,752 377,877

Other 50,000 50,000 0

Tuition 750,000 600,000 150,000

Other Revenue 2,796,965 2,570,039 226,926

Rentals and Leases 183,500 141,500 42,000

Investment Income 50,000 37,500 12,500

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,566,007 1,554,058 11,949

Total Revenue 32,067,101 31,245,849 821,252

Expenses 

Instruction 25,923,720 25,531,350 392,370

District Administration 1,109,673 1,054,192 55,481

Operations and Maintenance 4,756,899 4,824,584 (67,685)

Transportation and Housing 974,938 914,325 60,613

Total Expenses 32,765,230 32,324,451 440,779

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (698,129) (1,078,602) (380,473)

Effects of change in Tangible Capital Assets 

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets 0 0 0

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 1,888,436 1,846,477 41,959

Total Effect of change in Tangible  

Capital Assets 1,888.436 1,846,477 41,959

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets 

(Debt) 1,190,307 767,875 422,432
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NOTE 19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

All significant financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments of the School District 
are either recognized or disclosed in the financial statements together with other information 
relevant for making a reasonable assessment of future cash flows, interest rate risk and credit risk. 

• Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the School District to 
concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of other receivables.  The 
maximum credit risk exposure is $206,705 (2018 - $175,899).   

The School District manages its credit risk by performing regular credit 
assessments of its customers and provides allowances for potentially 
uncollectible accounts receivable. 

• Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will encounter difficulty in 
meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. 

The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and 
forecasted cash flows from operations and anticipated investing activities to 
ensure, as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the School District’s reputation. 

• Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  
In seeking to manage the risks from foreign exchange rate fluctuations, the 
School District does not hold significant funds in U.S. dollars in order to reduce 
their risk against adverse movements in the foreign exchange rates. 

• Financial Asset Impairment
At each year-end date, the School District is required to evaluate and record any 
other-than-temporary impairment of its financial assets, other than those 
classified as held for trading.  Accordingly, the School District has compared the 
carrying value of each of these financial assets to its fair value as at June 30, 
2019.  No provision for impairment was recorded in the current year, as the fair 
value of all financial assets tested exceeded their carrying value. 
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NOTE 19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 

• Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities approximates their fair value due to the short-term maturities 
of these items. 

• Risk Management Policy
The School District, as part of its operations, has established objectives (i.e. 
hedging of risk exposures and avoidance of undue concentrations of risk) to 
mitigate credit risk as risk management objectives.  In seeking to meet these 
objectives, the School District follows a risk management policy approved by its 
Board of Trustees. 



Schedule 1 (Unaudited)

2019 2018

Operating Special Purpose Capital Actual Actual

Fund Fund Fund

$ $ $ $ $

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 995,693 10,274,186          11,269,879          10,993,562          

Changes for the year

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (82,897) (319,429) (402,326) 276,317 

Net Changes for the year (82,897) - (319,429) (402,326) 276,317 

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year - Statement 2 912,796 - 9,954,757 10,867,553          11,269,879          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2019 2019 2018

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 18)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 22,292,764        23,191,100        21,927,981        

Other 50,000 114,100 113,200 

Tuition 750,000 950,616 972,675 

Other Revenue 1,281,147          1,234,930 1,462,268          

Rentals and Leases 183,500 253,207 221,989 

Investment Income 45,000 71,506 56,631 

Total Revenue 24,602,411        25,815,459        24,754,744        

Expenses

Instruction 20,334,467        20,916,579        19,371,945        

District Administration 1,023,173          977,806 942,259 

Operations and Maintenance 2,800,471          3,079,683 2,999,622          

Transportation and Housing 825,000 924,288 875,182 

Total Expense 24,983,111        25,898,356        24,189,008        

Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (380,700) (82,897) 565,736 

Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 380,700 

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Local Capital (400,000) 

Total Net Transfers - - (400,000) 

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year - (82,897) 165,736 

Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 995,693 829,957 

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 912,796 995,693 

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year

Internally Restricted (Note 12) 676,518 781,429 

Unrestricted 236,278 214,264 

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 912,796 995,693 

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Operating Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

2019 2019 2018

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 18)

$ $ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education 22,997,091        23,689,201        22,487,365        

ISC/LEA Recovery (1,081,884)         (1,002,242)         (1,081,884)         

Other Ministry of Education Grants

Pay Equity 243,303 243,304 243,304 

Funding for Graduated Adults 5,000 8,807 7,793 

Transportation Supplement 91,754 91,754 91,754 

Economic Stability Dividend 23,564 13,004 

Return of Administrative Savings 105,664 

Carbon Tax Grant 30,000 30,978 31,396 

Employer Health Tax Grant 56,378 

Strategic Priorities - Mental Health Grant 35,000 

BCTEA - LEA Capacity Building Grant 6,850 

FSA Testing 7,500 7,506 7,506 

Shoulder Tapper 17,079 

Access Grant 5,000 

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 22,292,764        23,191,100        21,927,981        

Provincial Grants - Other 50,000 114,100 113,200 

Tuition

Summer School Fees 13,736 

International and Out of Province Students 750,000 936,880 972,675 

Total Tuition 750,000 950,616 972,675 

Other Revenues

Other School District/Education Authorities 125,263 125,263 127,768 

LEA Funding from First Nations 1,081,884          1,002,242          1,081,884          

Miscellaneous

Misc Billings & Recoveries 50,000 36,759 79,209 

Purchase Card Rebate 14,000 13,968 13,398 

Museum Society 91,009 

James Thomson PAC 69,000 

Edgehill PAC 10,000 10,000 

Pacific Blue Cross 40,298 

Art Starts Grant 6,400 

Total Other Revenue 1,281,147          1,234,930          1,462,268          

Rentals and Leases 183,500 253,207 221,989 

Investment Income 45,000 71,506 56,631 

Total Operating Revenue 24,602,411        25,815,459        24,754,744        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

2019 2019 2018

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 18)

$ $ $

Salaries

Teachers 8,789,922          9,047,617 8,362,039          

Principals and Vice Principals 1,382,000          1,439,701 1,380,827          

Educational Assistants 2,000,606          2,100,569 1,597,204          

Support Staff 1,959,747          1,871,031 1,841,872          

Other Professionals 1,405,904          1,273,997 1,142,186          

Substitutes 779,798 872,900 886,239 

Total Salaries 16,317,977        16,605,815        15,210,367        

Employee Benefits 3,846,731          3,735,542 3,445,014          

Total Salaries and Benefits 20,164,708        20,341,357        18,655,381        

Services and Supplies

Services 1,626,677          1,984,399 1,994,421          

Student Transportation 10,200 17,731 24,780 

Professional Development and Travel 296,088 366,861 324,902 

Rentals and Leases 223,800 213,584 225,155 

Dues and Fees 301,500 354,963 317,450 

Insurance 73,000 69,765 72,272 

Supplies 1,762,138          1,986,956 2,001,557          

Utilities 525,000 562,740 573,090 

Total Services and Supplies 4,818,403          5,556,999 5,533,627          

Total Operating Expense 24,983,111        25,898,356        24,189,008        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 7,017,496 299,866 14,221 110,254 357,094 514,387 8,313,318 

1.03 Career Programs 99,728 99,728 

1.07 Library Services 150,076 29,682 14,580 194,338 

1.08 Counselling 247,175 22,069 269,244 

1.10 Special Education 1,070,156 31,575 2,086,348 10,783 371,721 137,427 3,708,010 

1.30 English Language Learning 67,978 67,978 

1.31 Aboriginal Education 229,870 41,661 6,836 278,367 

1.41 School Administration 829,401 338,609 30,453 1,198,463 

1.60 Summer School 27,480 27,480 

1.61 Continuing Education 114,750 28,500 51,389 4,578 199,217 

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 50,388 112,174 4,265 166,827 

Total Function 1 9,047,617 1,372,859 2,100,569 496,295 780,204 725,426 14,522,970          

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration 66,842 159,355 226,197 

4.40 School District Governance 72,206 72,206 

4.41 Business Administration 112,563 144,200 256,763 

Total Function 4 - 66,842 - 112,563 375,761 - 555,166 

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 15,651 28,292 43,943 

5.50 Maintenance Operations 799,626 71,456 77,513 948,595 

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 65,576 65,576 

5.56 Utilities - 

Total Function 5 - - - 880,853 99,748 77,513 1,058,114 

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 16,385 18,284 34,669 

7.70 Student Transportation 364,935 69,961 434,896 

Total Function 7 - - - 381,320 18,284 69,961 469,565 

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9 - - - - - - - 

Total Functions 1 - 9 9,047,617 1,439,701 2,100,569 1,871,031 1,273,997 872,900 16,605,815          

Year Ended June 30, 2019
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Special Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Aboriginal Education

1.41 School Administration

1.60 Summer School

1.61 Continuing Education

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2019

2019 2019 2018

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and Actual Budget Actual

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies (Note 18)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

8,313,318            1,824,114            10,137,432          1,882,616            12,020,048          11,930,379          11,564,166          

99,728                21,488                121,216               5,062                  126,278               102,625               120,242               

194,338               46,718                241,056               10,879                251,935               300,218               203,869               

269,244               64,067                333,311               984                     334,295               366,975               400,923               

3,708,010            922,482               4,630,492            190,876               4,821,368            4,240,173            3,732,950            

67,978                17,786                85,764                89                       85,853                45,031                55,243                

278,367               69,590                347,957               77,192                425,149               475,650               334,645               

1,198,463            256,773               1,455,236            84,052                1,539,288            1,616,166            1,464,528            

27,480                5,482                  32,962                26,235                59,197                45,000                71,301                

199,217               48,688                247,905               338,742               586,647               514,438               614,741               

166,827               33,861                200,688               465,833               666,521               697,812               809,337               

14,522,970          3,311,049            17,834,019          3,082,560            20,916,579          20,334,467          19,371,945          

226,197               49,029                275,226               39,744                314,970               365,947               324,328               

72,206                2,538                  74,744                91,149                165,893               120,000               112,597               

256,763               64,866                321,629               175,314               496,943               537,226               505,334               

555,166               116,433               671,599               306,207               977,806               1,023,173            942,259               

43,943                8,911                  52,854                51,383                104,237               112,475               119,786               

948,595               197,065               1,145,660            1,085,686            2,231,346            1,979,809            2,088,574            

65,576                14,751                80,327                101,033               181,360               163,187               218,172               

-                          -                          562,740               562,740               545,000               573,090               

1,058,114            220,727               1,278,841            1,800,842            3,079,683            2,800,471            2,999,622            

34,669                5,459                  40,128                1,961                  42,089                56,588                36,311                

434,896               81,874                516,770               365,429               882,199               768,412               838,871               

469,565               87,333                556,898               367,390               924,288               825,000               875,182               

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

16,605,815          3,735,542            20,341,357          5,556,999            25,898,356          24,983,111          24,189,008          
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Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2019 2019 2018

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 18)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 4,377,865          4,385,711 4,230,028          

Other Revenue 1,515,818          1,870,264 1,847,151          

Total Revenue 5,893,683          6,255,975 6,077,179          

Expenses

Instruction 5,589,253          5,951,545 5,772,959          

District Administration 86,500 86,500 86,290 

Operations and Maintenance 217,930 217,930 217,930 

Total Expense 5,893,683          6,255,975 6,077,179          

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year - - - 

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year - - - 

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year - - 

School District No. 47 (Powell River)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations

Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Rural Education

Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year 13,682 88,698 

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 122,930 88,571 128,000 14,700 53,025 200,243 260,000 

Other 1,421 1,777,544           

122,930 88,571 1,421 1,777,544           128,000 14,700 53,025 200,243 260,000 

Less: Allocated to Revenue 122,930 88,571 2,000 1,722,742           128,000 14,700 53,025 200,243 260,000 

Deferred Revenue, end of year - - 13,103 143,500 - - - - - 

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 122,930 88,571 128,000 14,700 53,025 200,243 260,000 

Other Revenue 2,000 1,722,742           

122,930 88,571 2,000 1,722,742           128,000 14,700 53,025 200,243 260,000 

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 25,000 38,500 

Principals and Vice Principals 100,000 

Educational Assistants 80,000 

Support Staff 87,573 7,961 

Other Professionals 24,289 

Substitutes 1,202 

- 80,000 - - 87,573 1,202 25,000 32,250 138,500 

Employee Benefits 8,571 18,595 3,346 4,372 26,500 

Services and Supplies 122,930 2,000 1,722,742           21,832 13,498 24,679 163,621 95,000 

122,930 88,571 2,000 1,722,742           128,000 14,700 53,025 200,243 260,000 

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers - - - - - - - - - 

Interfund Transfers

- - - - - - - - - 

Net Revenue (Expense) - - - - - - - - - 

Year Ended June 30, 2019
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Other

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Other Revenue

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Classroom Classroom Classroom Auditory Culinary Arts Van Asep

Enhancement Enhancement Enhancement Outreach New Life Partnership Training

Fund - Overhead Fund - Staffing Fund - Remedies Program Society Program Partnership TOTAL

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

54,777 2,661 13,318 173,136 

135,104 1,699,885           418,230 1,210,246           4,330,934           

130,905 1,909,870           

135,104 1,699,885           418,230 1,210,246           - 130,905 - 6,240,804 

135,104 1,699,885           418,230 1,265,023           1,299 130,905 13,318 6,255,975 

- - - - 1,362 - - 157,965 

135,104 1,699,885           418,230 1,265,023           4,385,711           

1,299 130,905 13,318 1,870,264           

135,104 1,699,885           418,230 1,265,023           1,299 130,905 13,318 6,255,975           

6,969 1,359,907           350,000 16,832 1,797,208           

100,000 

80,000 

24,960 85,283 205,777 

284,522 308,811 

87,514 30,000 118,716 

119,443 1,359,907           380,000 386,637 - - - 2,610,512           

6,240 339,978 38,230 67,794 513,626 

9,421 810,592 1,299 130,905 13,318 3,131,837           

135,104 1,699,885           418,230 1,265,023           1,299 130,905 13,318 6,255,975           

- - - - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - 

Year Ended June 30, 2019
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Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2019 2018

Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund Actual

(Note 18) Capital Assets Capital Balance

$ $ $ $ $

Revenues

Investment Income 5,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,566,007      1,566,007 1,566,007      1,554,058         

Total Revenue 1,571,007      1,566,007 3,000 1,569,007      1,557,058         

Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 1,738,498      1,738,498 1,738,498      1,697,152         

Transportation and Housing 149,938         149,938 149,938         149,325 

Total Expense 1,888,436      1,888,436 - 1,888,436 1,846,477         

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (317,429)        (322,429) 3,000 (319,429)        (289,419) 

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Local Capital - 400,000 

Total Net Transfers - - - - 400,000 

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 216,350 (216,350)        - 

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 216,350 (216,350)        - 

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (317,429)        (106,079) (213,350)        (319,429)        110,581 

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 9,663,306 610,880         10,274,186    10,163,605       

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 9,557,227 397,530         9,954,757      10,274,186       

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Schedule of Capital Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2019

2019 Actual

Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Schedule 4A (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer

Sites Buildings Equipment Vehicles Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost, beginning of year 4,038,922 66,097,451          1,293,799 1,499,375 103,495 372,365 73,405,407          

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Purchases from:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 851,348 90,000 941,348 

Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 33,533 33,533 

Local Capital 104,432 90,654 21,264 216,350 

- 955,780 214,187 21,264 - - 1,191,231 

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 50,895 24,473 75,368 

- - 50,895 24,473 - - 75,368 

Cost, end of year 4,038,922 67,053,231          1,457,091 1,496,166 103,495 372,365 74,521,270          

Work in Progress, end of year - 

Cost and Work in Progress, end of year 4,038,922 67,053,231          1,457,091 1,496,166 103,495 372,365 74,521,270          

Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year 23,966,796          491,529 648,241 23,434 133,053 25,263,053          

Changes for the Year

Increase:  Amortization for the Year 1,513,946 129,380 149,938 20,699 74,473 1,888,436 

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 50,895 24,473 75,368 

- 50,895 24,473 - - 75,368 

Accumulated Amortization, end of year 25,480,742          570,014 773,706 44,133 207,526 27,076,121          

Tangible Capital Assets - Net 4,038,922 41,572,489          887,077 722,460 59,362 164,839 47,445,149          

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Tangible Capital Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Version: 3600-2854-9872
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Schedule 4C (Unaudited)

Bylaw Other Other Total

Capital Provincial Capital Capital

$ $ $ $

Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 35,090,019        2,541,871          847,158 38,479,048        

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 941,348 33,533 974,881 

941,348 33,533 - 974,881 

Decrease:

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 1,454,935          85,153 25,919 1,566,007          

1,454,935          85,153 25,919 1,566,007          

Net Changes for the Year (513,587) (51,620) (25,919) (591,126) 

Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 34,576,432        2,490,251          821,239 37,887,922        

Work in Progress, beginning of year - 

Changes for the Year

Net Changes for the Year - - - - 

Work in Progress, end of year - - - - 

Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 34,576,432        2,490,251          821,239 37,887,922        

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2019
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Schedule 4D (Unaudited)

MEd Other

Bylaw Restricted Provincial Land Other

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, beginning of year - 

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 941,348 941,348 

Provincial Grants - Other 33,533 33,533 

941,348 - 33,533 - - 974,881 

Decrease:

Transferred to DCR - Capital Additions 941,348 33,533 974,881 

941,348 - 33,533 - - 974,881 

Net Changes for the Year - - - - - - 

Balance, end of year - - - - - - 

School District No. 47 (Powell River)
Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Education of School District No. 47 (Powell River) and the Minister of Education: 

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of School District No. 47 (Powell River) (the “School District”), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the statements of operations, 
remeasurement gains and losses, changes in net financial debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the financial statements present the financial position of the School District as at June 30, 2019
and the results of its operations, remeasurement gains and losses, changes in net debt and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in compliance with, in all material respects, the financial reporting framework based on
Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act and the Province of British Columbia’s
Treasury Board Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the School District in accordance with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 2 which describes the financial reporting framework being followed by School District 
No. 47 (Powell River).

Supplementary Information
We draw attention to the Supplementary Financial Information included in Schedules 1 to 4D which has not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on it. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the financial reporting framework based on Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act 
and the Province of British Columbia’s Treasury Board Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the School District’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management intends to liquidate the School District or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the School District’s financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School District’s internal control

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School District’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the School District to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

September 25, 2019 

Campbell River, BC Chartered Professional Accountants 

Tammy.McQuay
Text Box




Telephone: 604 414 2600      Fax: 604 485 6435 

Climate Strike Sept 27 – Letter to Parents/Guardians 

September 23, 2019 

Dear Parents/Caregivers, 

On Friday, September 27th, we anticipate there will be a youth led community walkout involving 
students as part of Climate Strike, a day to raise awareness and call for urgent climate action. 

Safety is always our priority. We are concerned about students who leave our schools unsupervised 
throughout the school day. We believe in honouring student voice and supporting students to be 
actively engaged in social issues such as climate change; however, there will be no school supervision 
for students who leave the school to participate. There will be no negative consequences for 
students that participate, in fact we encourage participation with parental approval. 

We ask that parents/caregivers engage in dialogue with their child(ren) about ways to take action 
and advise the school in advance should the student be allowed to participate in this walkout. 

Sincerely, 

Dr. Jay Yule 
Superintendent 
Board of Education 
School District 47 (Powell River) 

JY/ac 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 47 (POWELL RIVER) 

Office of the Superintendent of Schools 

4351 Ontario Avenue, Powell River, BC V8A 1V3 
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September 18, 2019 

 

 

Dear Board of Education Chairs: 

 

Subject: Global School Climate Strikes 

 

I am writing to you on behalf of the 43,000 BC public school teachers in regards to the upcoming 

Global School Climate Strikes planned for September 20 and 27 that may be happening locally in 

your community. Our students have made it very clear to us that this crisis is of the utmost 

importance to them and to their futures. We fully believe that our students feel a need to be part of the 

solution to this existential crisis. 

 

To that end the British Columbia Teachers Federation is asking the Boards of Education to support 

students who wish to attend the School Climate Strikes of September 20 and 27, to excuse student 

absences on both dates and to encourage teachers who wish to organize field trips to accompany their 

students to the climate actions in their communities. To be clear, we understand that student absences 

would still be reported to parents in the usual manner. 

 

It is hoped that the Board of Education will help facilitate this important learning experience of a 

worldwide collective action moving towards systemic change to protect our planet.  If teachers know 

they have the backing of their employer to use these events as a teachable moment, not only does this 

support staff but also tells your students that we all value their stand to protect the planet. 

 

Common quotes we are hearing from students concerned about the future impacts of climate change 

include: 

• If not me, then who? 

• If not now, then when? 

• It’s time to resist and take charge of the future that belongs to us! 

• I thought I was the only one worried about the planet and then, suddenly, there are other kids 

taking the chance to change things— and I am sure it will empower other kids to do the same. We 

need to act now so we have a future.  

 

It is an important moment in history. Let’s support students and their teachers to take a stand for what 

they believe in. 

 

In solidarity, 

 

 
Teri Mooring 

President 

 
TM/ds:tfeu 
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